SENATE COMMITTEE ON RULES AND ELECTIONS

June 10, 1999 Hearing Room B

8:00 a.m. Tapes 87 - 88

MEMBERS PRESENT: Sen. Charles Starr, Chair

Sen. Randy Miller, Vice-Chain
Sen. Lee Beyer
Sen. Peter Courtney
Sen. Neil Bryant

MEMBER EXCUSED:

STAFF PRESENT: Ray Kelly, Administrator

Gary Roulier, Administrative Support

MEASURE/ISSUES HEARD: HB 2883A Public Hearing and Work Session

Executive Appointments

Environmental Quality Commission

HB Public Hearing and Possible Work Session

These minutes are in compliance with Senate and House Rules. Only text enclosed in quotation marks reports a speakeris exact words. For complete contents, please refer to the tapes.

TAPE/#	Speaker	Comments

TAPE 87, A	<u>.</u>	
002	Chair Starr	Opens the meeting at 8:08 a.m. and opens a public hearing on HB 2833A.
<u>HB 2833A I</u>	PUBLIC HEARING	
013	Tom Byler	Oregon Water Resources Department. Testifies in support of HB 2833A which would conform requirements for permanent change in place of the use of water under district water right to other water right transfer requirements.
062	Jan Lee	Executive Director, Oregon Water Resources Congress. Presents (EXHIBIT A) and testifies in support of HB 2833A. Explains that this is a "housekeeping" bill for district water right transfer procedures.
097	Chair Starr	Closes the public hearing and opens a work session on HB 2833A.

HB 2833A WORK SESSION

099	Sen. Bryant	MOTION: Moves HB 2833A to the floor with a DO PASS recommendation.
		VOTE: 5-0
		AYE: In a roll call vote, all members present vote Aye.
	Chair Starr	The motion CARRIES.
		SEN. BRYANT will lead discussion on the floor.
103	Chair Starr	Closes the work session and opens a work session on executive appointments.
EXECUTIVI	E APPOINTMENTS ñ EN	VIRONMENTAL QUALITY COMMISSION
120	Sen. Bryant	MOTION: Moves the appointment of Rose Marie Davis to the Environmental Quality Commission to the floor without the recommendation that the appointment be confirmed.
		VOTE: 5-0

AYE: In a roll call vote, all members present vote Aye.

	Chair Starr	The motion CARRIES.
		SEN. MILLER will lead discussion on the floor.
128	Chair Starr	Closes the work session and opens a public hearing on HB 2881A.
<u>HB 2881A</u>	PUBLIC HEARING	
184	Chair Starr	Closes the public hearing and opens a work session on HB 2881A.
<u>HB 2881A V</u>	WORK SESSION	
188	Sen. Courtney	MOTION: Moves HB 2881A to the floor WITHOUT RECOMMENDATION as to passage and BE REFERRED to the committee on Ways and Means.
		VOTE: 4-0
		AYE: In a roll call vote, all members present vote Aye.
		EXCUSED: 1 - Bryant
	Chair Starr	The motion CARRIES.
205	Chair Starr	Closes the work session and opens a public hearing on HB 2838A.
HB 2838A	PUBLIC HEARING	
255	Rep. Jason Atkinson	House District 51. Presents (EXHIBIT B) and testifies in support of HB 2838A which modifies the membership of the Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) to require at least one member from each of seven designated areas. Presents (EXHIBIT C) and outlines the provisions of the ñA 4 amendments.
299	Don Schellenberg	Oregon Farm Bureau. Presents (EXHIBIT D) and testifies in support of HB 2838A. Notes that the bill provides for a coastal representative on the LCDC and addresses other geographical similarities within the state.

331	Randy Tucker	Policy Advocate, 1,000 Friends of Oregon. Testifies in support of the ñA4 amendments and HB 2838A. Agrees that appointments based on congressional districts do not adequately represent regional differences in Oregon.
386	Schellenberg	Summarizes the proposed regional appointments and the provisions of Section 2 of the ñA4 amendments. Recommends a conceptual amendment that would exchange subparagraphs (b) and (d).
402	Rep. Atkinson	Adds that the conceptual amendment would allow the appointments to be made in the order that vacancies occur.
TAPE 88, A		
006	Tucker	Comments that he does not object to the proposed conceptual amendment.
018	Sen. Beyer	Asks why the number of appointments was established at seven.
021	Rep. Atkinson	Answers that seven members was the consensus.
028	Sen. Beyer	Notes that the additional members might enhance the regional representation.
031	Rep. Atkinson	Responds that the Governor prefers to keep the membership at seven.
044	Sen. Beyer	Comments on possible concerns of citizens in eastern Oregon being represented by LCDC members from urban areas.
051	Tucker	Explains that the change of district representation for the eastern counties is minimal under the provisions of this bill.
063	Chair Starr	Closes the public hearing and opens a work session on HB 2838A.
<u>HB 2838A W</u>	ORK SESSION	
068	Sen. Miller	Observes that issues in Clackamas and Multnomah County are vastly different. Discusses the terms of service for commissioners. Suggests that lines 21 and 22 of HB 2838A be deleted.
107	Sen. Miller	MOTION: Moves to AMEND HB 2838A on page 1 by deleting lines 21 and 22.
113	Schellenberg	Notes that cities and counties have agreed to support the bill as long as the provision to require two members to have had local government experience is retained. Adds that it is the local jurisdictions that implement local land use laws.
132	Sen. Beyer	Remarks on his opposition to the conceptual amendment.

143	Schellenberg	Adds that these are not separate positions within the commission.
154	Sen. Miller	Explains that his objection is not that local experience is not valuable, but that the bill makes it a requirement.
196		VOTE: 1-4
		AYE: 1 - Miller
		NAY: 4 - Beyer, Bryant, Courtney, Starr
	Chair Starr	The motion FAILS.
199	Sen. Beyer	Asks if there are conflicts with the provisions of the bill dealing with removal of a member for cause.
204	Ray Kelly	Administrator. Responds that the governorís authority to appoint members and remove them for cause are two different provisions.
212	Sen. Beyer	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT HB 2838A-4 amendments dated 6/10/99 (EXHIBIT C) and that the measure be FURTHER AMENDED on page 2, line 9, by changing subsection (b) to read "Second, a person representing Jackson and Josephine Counties and that portion of Douglas County lying east of the summit of the Coast Range;" and on page 2, line 14, by changing subsection (d) to read "Fourth, a person representing Clackamas, Multnomah and Washington Counties;".
		VOTE: 4-1
		AYE: 4 - Beyer, Bryant, Courtney, Starr
		NAY: 1 - Miller
	Chair Starr	The motion CARRIES.
228	Sen. Beyer	MOTION: Moves HB 2838A to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.
		VOTE: 4-1
		AYE: 4 - Beyer, Bryant, Courtney, Starr
		NAY: 1 - Miller

	Chair Starr	The motion CARRIES.
		SEN. BEYER will lead discussion on the floor.
233	Chair Starr	Closes the work session and opens a public hearing on HB 3259A.
<u>HB 3259A PU</u>	BLIC HEARING	
238	Rep. Bruce Starr	House District 3. Testifies in support of HB 3259A which allows county comprehensive plans to establish or extend urban services from inside urban growth boundary (UGB) to area inside the county but outside the growth boundary if certain conditions are met.
286	Sen. Beyer	Asks if there is available land within the UGB.
294	Rep. Starr	Responds that there is no available land within the UGB and any land that would be available would be too expensive.
298	Pat Egan	Associate, Conkling, Fiskum & McCormick. Presents (EXHIBIT E) and testifies in support of HB 3259A. Relates efforts by the City of Beaverton to find suitable property for school development.
340	Rep. Starr	Notes that the land use policy has resulted in higher prices for developable property.
350	Sen. Miller	Agrees that land use planning drives up the prices of land and reduces the quality of life. Asks why this policy would apply only to schools and not for families.
361	Rep. Starr	Responds that the bill is only focusing on public schools.
371	Rep. Ryan Deckert	House District 8. Testifies in support of HB 3259A. Notes that the infill in Beaverton has allowed the building of schools near to the communities they serve.
392	Sen. Beyer	Asks where the children will live who attend the schools outside the UGB in the urban reserve areas.
402	Rep. Starr	Answers that the urban reserves are located contiguous to developed residential property.
410	Sen. Beyer	Comments that may be true in Hillsboro and Beaverton but not in other urban areas within the state. Asks if there have been discussions on expanding the UGB.

TAPE 87, B

003	Rep. Deckert	Answers that the determining factor is the price of land and the desire for the school district to purchase property before the land values increase after inclusion within the UGB.
008	Sen. Beyer	Asks whether the intent is to buy the land today to build on today, or to buy the property in order to develop at some point in the future. Adds that he is not aware of any statutes restricting school districts from buying land.
013	Egan	Agrees that is correct and reviews the growth projections for the Beaverton School District which will require an additional 30 facilities.
025	Sen. Beyer	Reviews the construction of new schools in Springfield within the UGB.
044	Chair Starr	Comments that there are areas in Washington County where vacant property within the urban reserve is surrounded by property in the UGB that has available services.
055	Sen. Beyer	Notes that is a planning rather than a statutory problem.
057	Sen. Miller	Remarks that residential development could actually occur where the schools are sited.
064	Sen. Courtney	Outlines the comprehensive planning process on the UGB in Salem and discusses the planned expansion of the UGB in Washington County.
079	Rep. Starr	Explains that the expansion of the UGB in the Hillsboro area is going through the appeals process.
097	Sen. Courtney	Discusses the appeals process with Rep. Starr and emphasizes that the land use laws are operating exactly as intended in Washington County.
112	Rep. Deckert	Emphasizes that the intent is not to overthrow the land use process but to allow a reasonable accommodation.
128	Egan	Reviews growth projections in Washington County. Reiterates the difficulties of locating suitable sites for schools in Washington County.
162	Sen. Bryant	Summarizes attempts to site schools in the City of Bend. States his support for HB 3259A.
183	Sen. Beyer	Reviews a process in Lane County to change the UGB and notes the process only took three months to complete.
200	John Chandler	Director of Governmental Affairs, Oregon Building Industry Association.

Presents (**EXHIBIT F**) and testifies in support of HB 3259A. Explains the different cost of property in Washington County inside and outside the UGB.

253	Chandler	Notes that adjustments need to be made in the land use policy to accommodate regions of high growth. Adds that the net effect on land use policy will be minor.
276	Mary McCurdy	Staff Attorney, 1,000 Friends of Oregon. Presents (EXHIBIT G) and testifies in opposition to HB 3259A. Notes that the urban reserve is the area where the UGB might expand once the 20-year land supply within the UGB is used up.
322	McCurdy	Reviews the urban reserve and the exception areas within Washington County where schools could be constructed.
349	Chair Starr	Points out that two of Hillsborois three high schools are within one mile of the proposed amended UGB.
362	McCurdy	Recommends that the UGB be modified in order to site schools. Adds that inadequate school funding is not justification for compromising Oregonis land use laws.
398	Bob Rindy	Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD). Presents (EXHIBIT H) and testifies in opposition to HB 3259A.
TAPE 88, B		
002	Rindy	Explains that urban reserves are intended for long term inclusion in the UGB. Notes that the issue in not unavailable developable land, but available land at a price that developers want to pay. Adds that most school districts do not factor busing costs into the siting of schools.
027	Sen. Bryant	Comments that the Bend School District does use busing costs when making siting decisions. Discusses state reimbursement to local school districts for busing costs.
053	Rindy	States that Metro has a minor UGB amendment process that would be a better solution.
061	Sen. Beyer	Asks for a time line for the processing of UGB adjustments within the state and the timeline for the minor amendment process.
066	Rindy	Answers that he is not aware of the timelines for those processes.
068	McCurdy	Adds that the minor amendment process within the Metro area takes a matter of months. Discusses the appeals process with the committee.
083	Sen. Beyer	Asks if they are aware of the amount of developable property in the Beaverton and Hillsboro area

087	Rindy	Responds that does not have the figures and reiterates that the key question is what the term "available" means.
097	Sen. Beyer	Asks about the process for reviewing public facility planning by the DLCD.
101	Rindy	Reviews legislative action to mandate that school siting be part of the comprehensive planning process.
118	Sen. Beyer	Asks if the majority of comprehensive plans allow for siting of schools in residential zones. Discusses the review of comprehensive plans with Rindy.
129	Sen. Miller	Asks who provided the testimony outlined in the exhibit.
131	Rindy	Responds that the director of the DLCD submits all testimony to the legislature.
136	Sen. Courtney	Notes that the testimony is focusing on schools when the building industry requested the bill.
154	Sen. Bryant	Explains that Pat Egan represents the Beaverton School District.
160	Egan	Reviews efforts to extend urban services to the urban reserve.
168	Philip Fell	League of Oregon Cities. Testifies in opposition to HB 3259A. Recommends that the committee allow the current system to function. Remarks that this bill will allow the development of single family dwellings in the urban reserve which will burden cities with the necessity of providing services both within and without the UGB.
202	Sen. Beyer	Asks for the position of the cities of Beaverton and Hillsboro on HB 3259A.
215	Fell	Responds that he is not aware of their position.
217	Chair Starr	Closes the public hearing and opens a work session on HB 3259A.
<u>HB 3259A V</u>	VORK SESSION	
224	Sen. Courtney	Comments on his opposition and reviews the land use process as it is applied on a local level. Notes that the system is designed to be a long process with significant public input and this legislation bypasses that process.
247	Sen. Bryant	MOTION: Moves HB 3259A to the floor with a DO PASS

recommendation.

VOTE: 3-2
AYE: 3 - Bryant, Miller, Starr
NAY: 2 - Beyer, Courtney

	Chair Starr	The motion CARRIES.
		SEN. STARR will lead discussion on the floor.
253	Chair Starr	Declares a recess at 9:49 a.m. and states that the committee will reconvene at 5:00 p.m.
254	Chair Starr	Reopens the meeting at 5:17 p.m. and opens a work session on HB 3028A.

HB 3028A WORK SESSION

262	Kelly	Presents (EXHIBIT H) and explains the provisions of the ñA3 amendments.
281	Chair Starr	Comments on his support for the bill and the ñA3 amendments.
302	Sen. Beyer	Discusses the purpose of the bill with the Chair.
319	Kelly	Clarifies the purpose of the bill with the ñA3 amendments.
325	Sen. Courtney	Asks if there is any opposition.
328	Chair Starr	Answers that there are no witnesses in opposition.

334	Sen. Miller	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT HB 3028A-3 amendments dated 6/9/99 (EXHIBIT H).
	Chair Starr	Hearing no objections, declares the motion CARRIED.
341	Sen. Miller	MOTION: Moves HB 3028A to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.

VOTE: 4-0

AYE: In a roll call vote, all members present vote Aye.

EXCUSED: 1 - Bryant

Chair Starr	The motion CARRIES.
	SEN. STARR will lead discussion on the floor.
Chair Starr	Closes the work session and adjourns the meeting at 5:23 p.m.

Submitted By, Reviewed By,

347

Gary Roulier, Ray Kelly,

Administrative Support Administrator

EXHIBIT SUMMARY

A ñ HB 2833A, written testimony, Jan Lee, 2 pp B ñ HB 2833A, map, Rep. Jason Atkinson, 1 p C ñ HB 2838A, amendments, staff, 2 pp D ñ HB 2838A, written testimony, Don Schellenberg, 1 p E ñ HB 3259A, written testimony, Pat Egan, 1 p F ñ HB 3259A, written testimony, Jon Chandler, 1 p G ñ HB 3259A, written testimony, Mary McCurdy, 2 pp H ñ HB 3259A, written testimony, Bob Rindy, 1 p I ñ HB 3028A, amendments, staff, 1 p

SENATE COMMITTEE ON RULES AND ELECTIONS

June 10, 1999 Hearing Room B

5:00 p.m. Tapes 90 ñ 91

MEMBERS PRESENT: Sen. Charles Starr, Chair

Sen. Randy Miller, Vice-Chair

Sen. Lee Beyer

Sen. Peter Courtney

MEMBER EXCUSED: Sen. Neil Bryant

STAFF PRESENT: Ray Kelly, Administrator

Gary Roulier, Administrative Support

MEASURE/ISSUES HEARD: HB 2540A Public Hearing and Work Session

SB 1295 Public Hearing and Work Session

HB 3378A Public Hearing and Work Session

HB 2661A Public Hearing and Work Session

These minutes are in compliance with Senate and House Rules. Only text enclosed in quotation marks reports a speaker's exact words. For complete contents, please refer to the tapes.

TAPE/#	Speaker	Comments	
TAPE 90, A	TAPE 90, A		
002	Chair Starr	Opens the meeting at 5:25 p.m. and opens a public hearing on HB 2540A.	
<u>HB 2540A I</u>	HB 2540A PUBLIC HEARING		

		VOTE: 4-0 AYE: In a roll call vote, all members present vote Aye. EXCUSED: 1 - Bryant
090	Sen. Beyer	MOTION: Moves HB 2540A to the floor with a DO PASS recommendation.
HB 2540/	A WORK SESSION	
083	Chair Starr	Closes the public hearing and opens a work session on HB 2540A.
077	Barrows	Answers that he is not sure.
076	Sen. Miller	Asks if the rules would allow more than one caretaker dwelling.
067	Tom Barrows	YMCA. Testifies in support of HB 2540A but notes concern with the allowance for one caretaker dwelling.
062	Harris	Responds that is the assumption.
061	Sen. Beyer	Asks if the assumption is that the definition will be taken care of during the rule adoption process.
)51	Harris	Responds that deletion was necessary because the interested parties could not agree on a suitable definition for "camp."
)47	Sen. Beyer	Asks about the deletion of the definition of "camp" in the original bill.
043	Jessica Harris	Rep. Lynn Lundquist Office. Testifies in support of HB 2540A.
026	Syme	Responds that a recent application for a youth camp in Crook County uncovered the land use ruling. Explains that youth camps fall in between the definitions of "campgrounds" and "destination resorts."
)24	Sen. Beyer	Asks why they are no longer able to site camps in mixed farm and forest use lands.
)09	Larry Syme	Outreach Northwest. Testifies in support of HB 2540A which authorizes youth camps on land zoned for forest use or mixed farm and forest use.

	Chair Starr	The motion CARRIES. SEN. BEYER will lead discussion on the floor.
098	Chair Starr	Closes the work session and opens a public hearing on SB 1295.
<u>SB 1295 I</u>	PUBLIC HEARING	
104	John McCauley	Oregon Association of Mortgage Brokers. Presents (EXHIBIT A) and testifies in support of SB 1295 which modifies provisions for denial, suspension or revocation of a mortgage banker and mortgage broker.
116	Edward Trompke	Oregon Association of Mortgage Brokers. Testifies in support of SB 1295. Presents (EXHIBIT B) and outlines the provisions of the ñ3 amendments.
149	Trompke	Explains that the purpose of SB 1295 is to remove some liability from mortgage lenders.
171	Chair Starr	Closes the public hearing and opens a work session on SB 1295.
<u>SB 1295 v</u>	WORK SESSION	
174	Sen. Miller	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT SB 1295-3 amendments dated 6/1/99 (EXHIBIT B).
	Chair Starr	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
178	Sen. Miller	MOTION: Moves SB 1295 to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.
		VOTE: 4-0
		VOTE: 4-0 AYE: In a roll call vote, all members present vote Aye.
	Chair Starr	AYE: In a roll call vote, all members present vote Aye.
	Chair Starr	AYE: In a roll call vote, all members present vote Aye. EXCUSED: 1 - Bryant

HB 3378A PUBLIC HEARING		
197	Jeanne Robinson	Chair, Pioneer Cemetery Commission. Presents (EXHIBIT C) and testifies in opposition to HB 3378A which defines a pioneer cemetery as any burial place that contains the remains of a person who died before February 14, 1909.
251	Rep. Kevin Mannix	House District 32. Testifies in support of HB 3378A. Explains provisions of the bill which change the appointing authority for the Pioneer Cemetery Commission (PCC) from the Governor to the Director of Parks and Recreation.
302	Rep. Mannix	Outlines some emerging problems with the PCC. Notes that the PCC may require a "fresh start."

354	Rep. Larry Wells	House District 30. Presents (EXHIBIT D) and testifies in support of HB 3378A. Comments on the advantages of moving the PCC to Parks and Recreation.
403	Sen. Miller	Points out that Parks and Recreation has the authority to reappoint the current commissioners.
TAPE 91, A		
001	Rep. Mannix	Explains that 1909 was selected because it is 60 years from the designation of Oregon as a state.
011	Sen. Beyer	Asks about the definition within the bill for "plan" and how that is differentiated from the term "plat."
022	Rep. Mannix	Responds that the current statutory language is too narrow and the Mortuary and Cemetery Board recommended a change.
036	Sen. Beyer	Comments on discussions in committee with the different terms.
040	Rep. Mannix	Points out that the Attorney Generalis office found no problem with the language.
052	Sen. Beyer	Expresses concern about a possible conflict with a bill previously passed out of committee.
066	Jim Lockwood	Government Relations Manager, Oregon Parks and Recreation Department. Testifies in support of HB 3378A but expresses concern about funding. Discusses the fiscal impact of the bill with Sen. Beyer.

089	Sen. Beyer	Asks if the director has had discussions regarding the commission member makeup.
096	Lockwood	Responds that he is not aware of specific discussions but notes that there is a desire to have some continuity among the commissioners.
114	Bonnie Kiser	Oregon Historic Cemeteries Association, Inc. (OHCA). Presents (EXHIBIT E) and recommends amending, rather than abolishing, the statutes dealing with historic cemeteries.
150	Sen. Beyer	Asks how many cemeteries are represented by the OHCA and the witnessí position within the group.
152	Kiser	Answers that they represent 85-100 cemeteries within the state. Adds that she is the associationis secretary.
175	Sean Smith	Citizen, Marion County. Testifies in support of HB 3378A.
194	Sen. Beyer	Asks how many cemeteries are represented by the Pioneer Cemetery Association.
196	Smith	Responds that he is not aware of how many cemeteries are represented.
205	Chair Starr	Closes the public hearing and opens a work session on HB 3378A.
<u>HB 3378</u>	A WORK SESSION	
216	Sen. Miller	MOTION: Moves HB 3378A to the floor with a DO PASS recommendation.
		VOTE: 4-0
		AYE: In a roll call vote, all members present vote Aye.
		EXCUSED: 1 - Bryant
	Chair Starr	The motion CARRIES.
		SEN. COURTNEY will lead discussion on the floor.
237	Chair Starr	Closes the work session and opens a public hearing on HB 2661A.
<u>HB 2661</u>	A PUBLIC HEARING	
253	Jeanette Bartel	Administrator, Board of Architect Examiners. Presents (EXHIBIT F) and

testifies in support of HB 2661 which authorizes the State board of Architect Examiners to adopt continuing education requirements for architects holding certificates of registration. Presents (**EXHIBIT G**) and explains the provisions of the ñA3 amendments.

277	Sen. Beyer	Asks if architects are presently required to complete continuing education to maintain currency with the Uniform Building Codes.
284	Bartel	Responds that they are not.
297	Sen. Beyer	Asks if the board has ever discussed architects remaining current on changes within the building code.
302	Bartel	Answers that there have been discussions on requiring currency and it would seem to be appropriate to include these requirements when developing the continuing education guidelines.
321	Sen. Beyer	Comments that architects frequently have plans rejected due to an unfamiliarity with changes in the building codes.
334	Chair Starr	Closes the public hearing and opens a work session on HB 2661A.
<u>HB 2661A W</u>	VORK SESSION	
338	Sen. Courtney	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT HB 2661A-3 amendments dated 6/9/99 (EXHIBIT G).
	Chair Starr	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
346	Sen. Courtney	MOTION: Moves HB 2661A to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.
		VOTE: 3-1
		AYE: 3 - Beyer, Courtney, Starr
		NAY: 1 - Miller
		EXCUSED: 1 - Bryant
	Chair Starr	The motion CARRIES.
		SEN. STARR will lead discussion on the floor.
		SEN, STARR will lead discussion on the noor.

Submitted By, Reviewed By,

Gary Roulier, Ray Kelly,

Administrative Support Administrator

EXHIBIT SUMMARY

-

A ñ SB 1295, written testimony, John McCauley, 1 p B ñ SB 1295, amendments, staff, 3 pp C ñ HB 3378A, written testimony, Jeanne Robinson, 4 pp D ñ HB 3378A, written testimony, Rep. Larry Wells, 2 pp E ñ HB 3378A, written testimony, Bonnie Kiser, 3 pp F ñ HB 2661A, written testimony, Jeanette Bartel, 2 pp G ñ HB 2661A, amendments, staff, 2 pp